22 July 2021 at 7.00 pm ””,”
Council Chamber, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks Sevenoaks

Published: 14.07.21 DISTRICT COUNCIL

This meeting will be livestreamed here:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCIT1f_F50fvTzxjZké6Zgnég

Development Control Committee

Membership:

Chairman, Cllr. Williamson; Vice-Chairman, Cllr. Pett

Cllrs. Ball, Barnett, Brown, Cheeseman, Perry Cole, Coleman, P. Darrington,
Edwards-Winser, Hogarth, Hudson, Hunter, Layland, McGarvey, Osborne-Jackson,
Purves, Raikes and Reay

Agenda

There are no fire drills planned. If the fire alarm is activated, which is a
continuous siren with a flashing red light, please leave the building immediately,
following the fire exit signs.

Pages Contact
Apologies for Absence

1. Minutes To follow
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the
Committee held on 7 July 2021, as a correct
record.

2. Declarations of Interest or Predetermination
Including any interests not already registered

3. Declarations of Lobbying

4.  Planning Applications - Chief Planning Officer's
Report

4.1 21/01366/HOUSE - 29 - 31 High Street, (Pages 1 - 10)  Louise Cane
Chipstead, Kent, TN13 2RW Tel: 01732 227000

Erection of shed and playhouse in the
garden.

4.2 21/00812/ADV - White Oak Leisure Centre, (Pages 11 -18) Mike Holmes
Hilda May Avenue, Swanley, Kent, BR8 7BT Tel: 01732 227000

White Oak Leisure Centre signage - large
letter format, illuminated and faced fixed to
building. Everyone active - smaller logo and
letter format signage, illuminated and faced
fixed to the building. Sevenoaks District
Council - smaller signage, illuminated and
faced fixed to the building.


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UClT1f_F5OfvTzxjZk6Zqn6g

EXEMPT INFORMATION

At the time of preparing this agenda there were no exempt items. During any
such items which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.

Any Member who wishes to request the Chairman to agree a pre-meeting site
inspection is asked to email democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk or speak to a
member of the Democratic Services Team on 01732 227000 by 5pm on Monday,
19 July 2021.

The Council's Constitution provides that a site inspection may be determined to
be necessary if:

i Particular site factors are significant in terms of weight attached to
them relative to other factors and it would be difficult to assess
those factors without a Site Inspection.

ii. The characteristics of the site need to be viewed on the ground in
order to assess the broader impact of the proposal.

iii. Objectors to and/or supporters of a proposal raise matters in
respect of site characteristics, the importance of which can only
reasonably be established by means of a Site Inspection.

iv. The scale of the proposal is such that a Site Inspection is essential
to enable Members to be fully familiar with all site-related matters
of fact.

V. There are very significant policy or precedent issues and where
site-specific factors need to be carefully assessed.

When requesting a site inspection, the person making such a request must state
under which of the above five criteria the inspection is requested and must also
provide supporting justification.

If you wish to obtain further factual information on any of the agenda items listed
above, please contact the named officer prior to the day of the meeting.

Should you need this agenda or any of the reports in a different format, or
have any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact
Democratic Services on 01732 227000 or democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk



mailto:democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk
democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4.1

4.1 21/01366/HOUSE Revised expiry date 23 July 2021

Proposal: Erection of the shed and playhouse in the garden.
Location: 29 - 31 High Street, Chipstead, KENT TN13 2RW
Ward(s): Brasted, Chevening And Sundridge

Item for decision - The application has been referred to Development Control
Committee by Councillor London because of the negative impact on the character
of the Conservation Area and the setting of the listed building in Stairfoot Lane.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans and details: 2210/01C, 2201/10, 2201/11

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2) Within six months of the date of this planning permission, the proposed
landscape planting shall be carried out in accordance with the approved detailed
layout plan 2201 / 11. If within a period five years from the date of this
permission any of the plants and hedging that forms part of the approved details of
soft landscaping die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased then
they shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and
species.

To conserve the visual appearance of the area as supported by EN1 of the
Sevenoaks Allocations and Development Management Plan.

National Planning Policy Framework

In dealing with this application we have implemented the requirements in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant/agent in a positive,
proactive and creative way by offering a pre-application advice service; as
appropriate updating applicants/agents of any issues that may arise in the
processing of their application and where possible and if applicable suggesting
solutions to secure a successful outcome. We have considered the application in
light of our statutory policies in our development plan as set out in the officer’s
report.

page 1 (tem No. 4.1) 1




Agenda Item 4.1

Description of site

1

The application site currently comprises of a detached dwelling located
within Chipstead High Street and borders Stairfoot Lane. There are
neighbouring properties surrounding the application site, with the site being
located within the parish of Chevening.

Description of proposal

2

This is a retrospective application for the erection of the shed, whilst the
playhouse has not been erected yet. Both structures are to be sited in the
rear garden.

Relevant planning history

3 15/03440/HOUSE - Removal of existing timber outbuilding, conversion of the
existing garage/workshop into a kitchen/lounge area. Conversion of the
existing kitchen into a games room and boots/side entrance. New roofs, 4
rooflights and new flue. New garden shed and new electrically operated
gate - GRANT - 31/05/2016

4 20/01485/LBCALT - Erection of the shed and playhouse in the garden and
landscaping-WDN

Policies

5 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

6 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF confirms that there is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development and that development proposals that accord with
an up-to-date development plan should be approved without delay.

7 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF also states that where there are no relevant

development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for
determining the application are out-of-date, permission should be granted
unless:

e The application of policies in this framework that protect areas or assets
of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed or

e Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the
framework taken as a whole

e Footnote 6 (see reference above) relates to policies including SSSls,
Green Belt, AONBs, designated heritage assets and locations at risk of
flooding

page 2 (Item No. 4.1) 2



Agenda Item 4.1

8 Core Strategy (CS)
e LO1 Distribution of Development
e SP1 Design of New Development and Conservation
e LO8 The Countryside and Rural Economy
9 Allocations and Development Management (ADMP)
e SC1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
e EN1 Design Principles
e EN2 Amenity Protection
e EN5 Landscape
10 Other:
e Development in the Green Belt Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
Constraints
11 The following constraints apply:

e Conservation Area

e Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

e Listed Building (main dwelling and boundary wall bordering Stairfoot
Lane)

Consultation Responses

12

13

Chevening Parish Council- support: if the shed were to be built where
originally planned the neighbours view would be negatively compromised.

Conservation Officer: the site is a secluded, softly landscaped private
garden within the Chipstead conservation area and a number of Grade Il
listed buildings and structures exist in close proximity. Paragraphs 193 & 194
of the NPPF require great weight to be given to the conservation of
designated heritage assets and note that significance can be harmed or lost
through unsympathetic development within their settings. Two diminutive,
timber clad out-buildings are to be discretely located well to the rear of the
site, where they will be largely screened by perimeter shrubbery. While the
small structures may feature minimally in private views from the listed
building immediately to the south, their modest presence neither intrudes
into any significant elevational views of the neighbouring listed buildings,
not does it diminish the distinctive qualities of any conservation area views.
From the conservation perspective, diminutive timber outbuildings of this
kind are considered temporary and their modest presence raises no harm to
the significance of any potentially affected designated heritage assets in the
vicinity. There is no objection to the proposal in terms of Policy EN4.

page 3 (Item No. 4.1) 3



14

Agenda Item 4.1

KCC Public Right of Way: Public Right of Way Footpath runs from the High
Street in a north-westerly direction directly beside this site. | enclose a copy
of the Public Rights of Way network map showing the line of this path for
your information. It is unfortunate that the mature planting which shielded
these buildings has been removed and they now loom over the public right
of way. | would request that hedging be planted of native species, to
mitigate the adverse visual impact of the buildings on users of the public
footpath.

Representations

15

One letter of support and one letter of objection has been received and
raises the following points:

Impact on the Conservation Area

Impact on the setting of the listed building

Impact due to the site levels

Inaccurate boundary

Requests a landscaping condition

The Laurel planting when matured will obscure the proposal
The previous application location would be more harmful

Chief Planning Officer’s appraisal

16

The main planning considerations are:

Impact on the Conservation Area
Impact on Listed Building
Impact on AONB and Character of the area

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
e Impact on residential amenity

Within or adjacent to a Conservation Area:

17

18

19

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 places a requirement on a local planning authority in relation to
development in a Conservation Area, to pay special attention to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that
area.

Interpretation of the 1990 Act in law has concluded that preserving the
character of the Conservation Area can not only be accomplished through
positive contribution but also through development that leaves the
character or appearance of the area unharmed.

Policy EN4 of the ADMP states that proposals that affect a Heritage Asset, or
its setting, will be permitted where the development conserves or enhances
the character, appearance and setting of the asset.

page 4 (tem No. 4.1) 4



20

21

Agenda Item 4.1

The application site is located within the Chipstead Conservation Area. The
Conservation Area Appraisal emphasises the importance of the character of
the street and the effect of the dwellings on this along with the importance
of the materials. It also states how the character and scale of dwellings
vary within the High Street. Stairfoot Lane is also directly referred to in
which it is described as a sense of enclosure and has quiet charm, with the
importance of the paving and the ragstone wall, which currently exceeds on
the site. The development does not alter the character of the main dwelling
or the character of the street scene as the outbuildings are located within
the rear garden of the site. The outbuildings are slightly visible from
Stairfoot Lane, however it would not alter the paving or the ragstone wall in
this location. The character is also varied and therefore would not be out of
keeping. There is also a level of proposed landscaping to be positioned close
to the ragstone boundary wall and would assist in slightly shielding the
proposal from Stairfoot Lane.

Therefore, as the proposal would not detrimentally harm the character of
the street scene or the Conservation Area and complies with Policy EN4 of
the ADMP.

Impact on the Listed Building

22

23

24

25

26

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 places a requirement on a local planning authority in relation to
development to Listed Buildings, to pay special attention to the conserving
the setting of Listed Buildings.

Interpretation of the 1990 Act in law has concluded that preserving the
setting of a setting of a Listed Building cannot only be accomplished through
positive contribution but also through development that leaves the
character or appearance of the area unharmed.

Policy EN4 of the ADMP states that proposals that affect a Heritage Asset, or
its setting, will be permitted where the development conserves or enhances
the character, appearance and setting of the asset. The dwelling itself is a
Listed Building and ragstone boundary wall, which borders Stairfoot Lane is
also listed.

The outbuildings would be located within the rear garden area of the listed
building and are close proximity to the listed ragstone wall. The
Conservation Officer was consulted on the application and confirms that the
outbuildings do not be harm the setting of the listed building or listed wall
as the proposal are small structures, which would be discretely located,
diminutive timber outbuildings and modest to the application site.

Therefore, the outbuildings do not harm the listed aspects of the site and
complies with Policy EN4 of the ADMP.

page 5 (Item No. 4.1) 5



Agenda Item 4.1

Impact on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and the Character of the
Area

27 Policy SP1 of the Core Strategy and Policy EN1 of the ADMP state that all
new development should be designed to a high quality and should respond
to and respect the character of the area in which it is situated.

28 The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 states that the Local Planning
Authority should conserve and enhance Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.
Designating an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty protects its distinctive
character and natural beauty and can include human settlement and
development.

29 There are therefore two considerations directly related to a site’s AONB
status when determining a planning application. Firstly, does the
application conserve the AONB and secondly, if it does conserve the AONB
does it result in an enhancement. A failure to achieve both of these points
will result in a conflict with the requirements of the Act.

30 Policy EN5 of the ADMP states that the Kent Downs and High Weald Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty and their settings will be given the highest
status of protection in relation to landscape and scenic beauty. Proposals
within the AONB will be permitted where the form, scale, materials and
design will conserve and enhance the character of the landscape and have
regard to the relevant Management Plan and associated guidance.

31 The outbuildings are located in the rear garden of the dwelling and
therefore would not be directly visible from the front elevation of the
dwelling and therefore would not significantly harm the character of the
street scene. The outbuilidngs are slightly visible from Stairfoot Lane,
however due to the varied street scene and the existing boundary wall and
proposed soft landscaping to be located close to the outbuildings and the
existing boundary wall, the outbuildings would not be out of keeping.

32 The outbuildings would be set behind the front building line of the dwelling
and in relation to the scale of the development, they would clearly be
ancillary to the main dwelling. The spacing on the site would also be
retained on the site, as the outbuildings would be located at least
approximately 1.5m from the boundary of the site with Stairfoot Lane. The
outbuildings would be modest in both scale and height and are expected on
a residential site, with outbuildings also being present on both the
application site and neighbouring sites within the locality of the area. The
site levels do differ on the application site and Stairfoot Lane, however due
to the modest scale and height of the outbuildings, they would not be a
detrimental addition.

33 The outbuildings would respect the varied materials within the area, and
use materials, which are common to ancillary outbuildings. The addition of
soft landscaping along the boundary would also be a positive addition to the
site, which would conserve and enhance the AONB.

page 6 (Item No. 4.1) 6



34

Agenda Item 4.1

The outbuildings comply with Policies EN1 and EN5 of the ADMP.

Impact on residential amenity

35

36

37

38

Policy EN2 of the ADMP requires proposals to provide adequate residential
amenities for existing and future occupiers of the development.

There are neighbouring properties surrounding the application site. The
neighbours located opposite the application site, on the opposite side of the
High Street would be minimally impacted by the proposal due to the
outbuildings being located in the rear garden of the application site and at a
considerable distance from these neighbours. Neighbouring property no. 33-
35 would also be minimally impacted due to the distance between this
neighbour and the outbuilidngs and the positioning of the neighbour in
relation to 29-31 High Street.

The outbuildings could potentially impact upon the neighbouring properties
no. 1, 5 & 7, however due to the modest scale of the proposed outbuildings,
the distance between the outbuildings and these neighbours and the
boundary treatment the outbuildings do not detrimentally harm the
residential amenity of these neighbours.

Therefore, the outbuildings would comply with Policy EN2 of the ADMP.

Other Issues

39

40

41

There is a Public Right of Way located down Stairfoot Lane, in which the
proposal would be visible from. KCC Public Right of Way raise no objection
to the scheme subject to the inclusion of a landscaping condition on the
decision if permission granted. A landscaping condition will be imposed to
secure the laurel planting.

A concern has been raised in relation to the boundary and the inaccuracy of
this. This has been re-assessed and amended by the agent and the amended
boundary is reflected on the plan nhumber 2201/01 C.

The proposed layout plan refers to an existing approved shed, in which the
proposed would alter the location of the proposed shed slightly. This shed
was approved under application 15/03440/HOUSE.

Community Infrastructure Levey (CIL)

42 The proposal is not CIL liable.
Conclusion
43 The proposal complies with the relevant national and local policies.

page 7 (Item No. 4.1) 7



Agenda Item 4.1
Background papers

Site and block plan

Contact Officer(s):

Richard Morris
Chief Planning Officer

Link to application details:

Link to associated documents:

Louise Cane: 01732 227000

Page 8

(tem No. 4.1) 8


https://pa.sevenoaks.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QSDOUBBK0LO00
https://pa.sevenoaks.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QSDOUBBK0LO00

Agenda Item 4.1

156250

156200

156150

156100

550|100

550|1 50

55Dl200

FB

550I250

All

L
156250

The Paddock

o

T
156200

156150

156100

T
550250

P
G e
‘hipstea

P "

i

Site Plan

Scale 1:1,250
Date 01/07/2021

rl 2o 2 X
Sevenoaks

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021
Ordnance Survey 100019428.

Page 9

(Item No. 4.1) 9



Agenda ltem 4.1

BLOCK PLAN
i\\\ V z
S, /
\\
N
- A\AK/Z;HW geEn oonsent /\
N\ o

HIGH STREET ___———==7—

2 =

by B\ e

AS CONSENT BLOCE. FLAN - 1:500

\\ V
\
\
O\

>\ N

AS BUILT BLOGE. FLAN - | :500

Page 10 (Item No. 4.1) 10



Agenda Item 4.2

4.2 21/00812/ADV Date expired 2 July 2021

Proposal: White Oaks Leisure Centre signage - large letter format,
illuminated and faced fixed to building. Everyone
Active - Smaller logo and letter format signage,
illuminated and faced fixed to building. Sevenoaks
District Council - Smaller logo and letter format
signage, illuminated and faced fixed to building.

Location: White Oak Leisure Centre, Hilda May Avenue, Swanley
KENT BR8 7BT

Ward(s): Swanley White Oak

Item for decision

The reason that the application is before the Development Control Committee is
because Sevenoaks District Council is the applicant.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions:

1) No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of
the site or any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant
permission.

To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 in the interests of amenity and public safety.

2) No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to:-a - endanger persons
using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome (civil or
military)b - obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway
signal or aid to navigation by water or air; orc - hinder the operation of any device
used for the purpose of security or surveillance or for measuring the speed of any
vehicle.

To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 in the interests of amenity and public safety.

3)  Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of
advertisements, shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual
amenity of the site.

To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 in the interests of amenity and public safety.

4)  Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of
displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not

page 11 (tem No.4.2) 1




Agenda ltem 4.2

endanger the public.

To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 in the interests of amenity and public safety.

5) Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed,
the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair
visual amenity.

To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 in the interests of amenity and public safety.

6) The intensity of the illumination shall not exceed 600 candelas /m2

To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 in the interests of amenity and public safety.

7)  The illumination of the sighage hereby approved should only be static in
nature.

To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 in the interests of amenity and public safety.

Description of the site

1 The application site previously comprised a large two storey leisure centre,
associated car parking areas and area of open space, sited on a large
irregularly shaped plot, located on Hilda May Avenue. The site is situated to
the north-east of London Road, approximately 380m to the north-west of
Swanley Town Centre.

Description of the proposal

2 The application seeks the approval of the installation of new illuminated
leisure centre signage proposed to be fixed to the front elevation of the new
leisure centre building. The signage comprises ‘White Oak Leisure Centre’ in
large text and logos for ‘Everyone Active’ and ‘Sevenoaks District Council’.

Relevant planning history

3 19/02951/HYB - Hybrid application comprising, in outline: residential
development of between 35 and 40 residential units - residential mix to be
either 2 or 3 bed units with either integral or on-street parking. Units to be
either 2 or 3 storey high. In detail: demolition of existing leisure centre
building and erection of replacement leisure centre and associated car park
-Granted.

page 12 (tem No.4.2) 2




Agenda Item 4.2

Relevant planning policies

4 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

5 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF confirms that there is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and that development proposals that accord with
an up-to-date development plan should be approved without delay.

6 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF also states that where there are no relevant
development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for
determining the application are out-of-date, permission should be granted
unless:

e application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed (footnote 6); or

e any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
Framework taken as a whole.

e Footnote 6 relates to a variety of designations, including SSSls, Green
Belt, AONBs, designated heritage assets and locations at risk of flooding.

7 Core Strategy (CS)

e SP1 Design of New Development and Conservation

8 Allocations and Development Management (ADMP)

e EN1 Design Principles

e EN2 Amenity Protection

e EN4 Heritage Assets

e EN6 Outdoor Lighting

9 Publicity expires on: 02.06.21

Constraints

10 The site lies within the following constraints:

Built urban confines of Swanley

Designated open space

Source Protection Zone 3

Adjacent Public Right of Way (south-west of application site)
Proposed Local Plan allocation (mixed housing and leisure centre
development)

Consultation responses

11

Swanley Town Council - ‘No objections. Subject to opening hours only and
level of illumination not impacting on residents overlooking the centre.’

page 13 (Item No.4.2) 3



Agenda ltem 4.2

Representations
12 We received no letters of representation.
Chief Planning Officer’s appraisal

13 In accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Control
of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007, the local planning authority
is required to exercise its powers in the interests of amenity and public
safety. The development plan may be held as a material consideration in
the determination of express consent applications.

14 The regulations indicate that in the assessment of advertisement consent
applications, ‘amenity’ includes visual amenity. The most relevant matter
for consideration in this case is the visual impact of the signage upon the
street scene and the character and appearance of the area in which the
signage is proposed.

15 Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states that advertisements should only be
subject to control in the interests of amenity and public safety, taking into
account cumulative impacts. Given this, the combined impact of the sighage
will be assessed as well as their individual impact.

16 Therefore, the main planning considerations are:

e Visual amenity
e Impact on public safety

Visual amenity

17 Policies SP1 of the Core Strategy and EN1 of the ADMP state that all new
development should be designed to a high quality and should respond to and
respect the character of the area in which it is situated.

18 The site is located within a built up area of Swanley, which is mainly
residential. However, a leisure centre is well established upon the site and
the Horizon Primary Academy is located opposite. Since both the existing
leisure centre and the school opposite possess signage, the principal of
advertisements in this location is acceptable

19 The new signage would be fixed to the front facade of the new leisure
centre building. The leisure centre building will have a modern design. This
would be reflected in the new signhage, which would be formed of powder
coated white stainless steel lettering, with opal acrylic back trays and
fixings and LED silicon strips internally fitted to give a halo illuminated
effect. All lettering would be mounted to a metal box section powder
coated to match the facade colour before being fixed to facade using
cladding fixing.

20 Overall, the sighage would have modest proportions and would be of a scale
that was subservient to the large size of the new leisure centre building.
The design and scale of the advertisements would not appear overtly
dominant within the street scene and the modest illumination of the signage

page 14 (tem No.4.2) 4



21

Agenda Item 4.2

would also sit comfortably locally given the existing level of street
illumination that occurs. The position of the signage is also sufficient
distance away from neighbouring residential properties to result in any harm
to the residential amenity. It is therefore not considered necessary to
control the time during which the signage is illuminated.

In conclusion, the signage would comply with the NPPF and policies SP1 of
the Core Strategy and EN1 of the ADMP.

Impact on public safety

22 The site forms part of an established leisure centre site, with the new
leisure centre building set well back from the public highway.

23 It is therefore the case that the new signage would not overhang or protrude
into the public highway and would not result in an increased risk to public
safety.

24 Whilst the signage is proposed to be illuminated, the size of the sighage and
the level of illumination is not as significant as to pose any risks to public
safety.

25 Given the above, it is not considered that there would be a significantly
adverse impact on the safety and operation of the surrounding highways or
pedestrian safety.

Conclusion

26 It is therefore considered that the proposed signage is in accordance with
the development plan.

Recommendation

27 It is therefore recommended that this application is GRANTED subject to

conditions.

Background papers

Site and block plan

Contact Officer(s): Mike Holmes : 01732 227000

Richard Morris
Chief Planning Officer

Link to application details:

Link to associated documents:

page 15 (tem No.4.2) 5


https://pa.sevenoaks.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QQ2N34BKG2P00
https://pa.sevenoaks.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QQ2N34BKG2P00

Agenda Item 4.2

551200

551100

551000

550900

x
o
[}
2
2
=

551100

551000

550900

Site Plan

1:2,500

Scale
Date

22/06/2021

Pl 22 2 X
Sevenoaks

@© Crown copyright and database rights 2021
Ordnance Survey 100019428

e T ] oy Y AT Nl
GRS Ty R

&

A

(Item No.4.2) 6

Page 16



Agenda Item 4.2

15 iecisting YEar ar
i acapted 1 bevome
ntial enirance 1o e
Tekidaritial duvelogiment

Foed diashed e dencie
post and inee il fence

—, 10 Cowvaed S2alll Long

_%sm C\‘-n_l’ar{v

Eleatic vetecle charging
pint

BLOCK PLAN

LOCATION OF
ILLUMISATED SHIKAGE

II:MdE_lﬂIN:
AL -y
i '/"
! -
¢ ! i "p'r-u .\I".
. PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL SITE |
REFER TO DHAWING 510
10468m? (1)bank) — =
1 = =—===-
I.\\‘_ ________ -
|‘I - .-\'
] mreme ' e
! 4 [e— ¢
o ) gl ‘;
: NEW |
LEISURE;
CENTRE |
[
BOWLS CLUB
Exiiling Sntrancs o Bowis,
by raaiai

Page 17

A0 Cipcle Parking -
VT Custnieqsd vy B
. ’ —
= Landcagen T
a
elrance i) - A
NomE:
dashed ine densiss RS SeEE 2 oy
post and knee i fencesy R J»?g i ....-:ia';

Lo
E}‘?{.};f

<,
o

(Item No.4.2) 7



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4.1 21/01366/HOUSE - 29 - 31 High Street, Chipstead, Kent, TN13 2RW
	4.2 21/00812/ADV - White Oak Leisure Centre, Hilda May Avenue, Swanley, Kent, BR8 7BT

